
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

     

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, February 7, 2017 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 January 31, 2017 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

       

Commissioners  

a. Benton County Tax Levy for 2017   

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000   

c. Establishing a Benton County Accessible Community Advisory Committee  

d. Bi-County Non-Bargaining Contribution for Insurance Benefits to Human Services, Juvenile 

Justice and Superior Court  

District Court   
e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111  

Fairgrounds   
f. Award to G2 Commercial Construction for the Remodel of Exhibit Halls 2 & 3 and 

Construction of Timber Pavilion   

Human Services 

g. Agreement w/US Dept of Housing & Urban Development for Continuum of Care Program   

h. Lease Agreement w/Lourdes Counseling Center for Detox Services  

Personnel      
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000   

Public Works 

j. Right of Way Plans for C.E. 1960 CRP Nine Canyon Road, Phase III    

k. Authorization to Process to Bid for Purchase of Refined Petroleum Products    

l. Authorization to Process to Bid for Purchase of Surfacing Materials     

m. Purchase of One Dodge Grand Caravan From Dwayne Lane’s Chrysler Jeep Dodge  

n. Purchase of Two Ford Escapes From Columbia Ford  

o. Purchase of Sign Materials for the TrafficJet Print System from Avery Dennison  

p. Contract w/Qal-Tek Asso. for Calibration of Two Troxler Nuclear Density Gauges  

q. Purchase of Traffic Sign Materials From Intermountain Sign & Safety  

 

Public Hearing 

 

Benton County Planning Policies ~ G Wendt 

 

 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area.

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

February 7, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Scheduled Business  

 

New Hope Detox Building Lease Discussion ~ K Sullivan    

 

Bexar County Consultant Discussion ~ K Sullivan 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
    

   Executive Session  

   Discussion of Performance of a Public Employee   

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us


 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, January 31, 2017, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

Present: Chairman James Beaver 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner Shon Small  

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain;  DPA Ryan Brown; Auditor 

Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; Clark Posey, Assistant Planning Manager; Jerrod 

MacPherson, Assistant Planning Manager; Shyanne Faulconer, Community Programs/PR 

Coordinator; DPA Steve Hallstsrom; Human Services Manager Kyle Sullivan; District Court 

Judge Dan Kathren; Coroner John Hansens; Superior Court Judge Alex Ekstrom.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of January 24, 2017 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “y”.    

Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Auditor  

a. Surplus of Personal Property  

Commissioners 

b. Allocation of Superior Court Salaries & Benefits & Costs of Information Technology 

Assessment; Rescinding Resolution 2016-244 

c. 2017 Franklin County Flat Monthly Payments for Benton Franklin Juvenile Center 

Operations & Facilities Budget 

d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000 

Facilities 

e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0305-101, Dept. 000   

Fairgrounds 

f. Payment to Cyrring Hot Productions for Website Hosting 

Information Technologies 

g. Amended Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Using Yammer Networking  



 - 2 - 

h. Purchase of ArcGIS Licenses from Environmental Systems Research Institute for GIS Dept 

Parks      
i. Contract w/Richardson’s Garage Doors for Replacement Door @ Horn Rapids Park    

j. Contract w/Northwest Playground Equipment, Inc for Shelter Structure @ Two Rivers 

Park 

Personnel 

k. Compensation for Chief Deputy Assessor, Auditor, Clerk & Treasurer  

l. Contract w/Pacific Microrem, Inc for Maintenance & Repair of X-Ray & Metal Detectors 

Public Safety 
m.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138   

n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138 

Public Works 

o. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500    

p. 2017 Road Levy Certification 

q. Agreement w/City of Grandview for Equipment Maintenance     

r. Payment to Rowand Machinery for Snow Removal Equipment Rental  

s. Authorization to Proceed to Bid for Crack Seal Project  

t. Contract w/Northwest Marine & Sport for Boat Repair & Maintenance 

Sheriff 

u. Agreement w/Kennewick School District for Education Program   

v. Title Changes and Position Change for Jail Lieutenant, Patrol Captain & Corrections 

Officer 

w. Compensation for Appointed Non-Bargaining Positions; Rescinding Resolution 2014-702 

Sustainable Development 
x. Deed of Right Regarding Properties Within Candy Mountain Preserve 

Treasurer 

y. Cancelling Taxes Assessed Determined to be Uncollectible  

 

Yakima River Basin Integrated Water Resource Management Plan Update 

 

Ben Floyd, Anchor QEA, Jason McShane, KID, Wendy Christensen, Bureau of Reclamation and 

Melissa Downes, Dept. of Ecology updated the Board on the Plan as follows: 

 

 Overview of Yakima River Basin 

 Integrated Plan 

o Solution – provide opportunities, restoration and enhancement including fish 

passage; improve water supply during drought years 

 Initial development projects 

 Organization, DC Leadership Group 

 Water Conservation and Efficiencies  

o Kachess Drought Relief Pumping Plant 

o Cle Elem Pool Raise/Construction 

o Cle Elem Dam Fish Passage Construction 

o Lower Yakima River Subgroup 

o Bateman Island Causeway 

o Groundwater Managed Recharge 



 - 3 - 

o Moving Forward – 2015-2017 

 

Commissioner Delvin said that Benton County included support of funding for this project in their 

legislative priorities agenda.  Additionally, staff was putting together a letter to send to the federal 

representatives to see about getting their support for the Yakima Basin Plan.   

 

Hanford Communities Annual Report 

 

Pam Larsen via/videoconference updated the Board on Hanford Communities and discussed the 

following issues: 

 

 Ecology Contract 

 Briefings on Hanford Topics 

 RL Site Manager Luncheon 

 Energy Communities Alliance 

 Advocacy for Issues of Local Concern 

 Intergovernmental Working Group 

 Heritage Tourism & B Reactor Preservation 

 

Hanford Advisory Board 

 

Bob Suyama via/videoconference updated the Board on the Hanford Advisory Board and 

discussed the following issues: 

 

 Annual report (provided a copy)  

 List of advice points provided to tri-party agencies  

o Safety of workforce; traffic infrastructure  

o Central plateau cleanup milestones  

o 2017-2018 budgets – position on budget  

o Master acquisition planning  

o Cleanup plans – weighing in on how to assist/benefit the public  

o Consent decree – issued white paper on how to share information once complete 

o White paper – low level waste process  

 

Rural County Capital Fund Disbursement Policy 

 

Adam Fyall presented the Rural County Capital Fund Disbursement Policy for approval by the 

Board. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the revised Rural County Capital Fund 

Disbursement Policy as presented.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion 

carried.   

 

  



 - 4 - 

Gang & Crime Prevention Initiative Presentation 
 

Shyanne Faulconer gave a Powerpoint presentation and briefly discussed the following programs 

being funded: 

 

 Mirror Ministries 

o Human Trafficking Survivor Services 

 Kiona-Benton City School District 

o Kiona-Benton Crime Prevention Program 

 Boys & Girls Club 

o Prosser Teen Program Investment 

 Safe Harbor/My Friends Place 

o Overnight Emergency Youth Shelter  

 Benton-Franklin Health District 

o Nurse Family Partnership Program 

 New Programs 

o Building Resilience Through Family Support (Partners for Early Learning) 

o Step-Up Program (Chaplaincy Health Care) 

 

Mr. Sparks asked why some of the contracts were funded at 75%.  Andy Miller via/videconference 

said if they blankly approved 100% of the requests they would be out of money; they scaled back 

on some of the programs to give them a chance to show what they could do.   

 

Mental Health Housing Program 2163 Funds 

 

Kyle Sullivan presented a new program to be funded through 2163 funds to implement a mental 

health housing program.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the resolution authorizing the use of 2163 

funds for implementation of the Mental Health Housing Program for Benton County homeless 

residents.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

WA State Parks & Recreation Commission – Boating Safety Program Application  

 

Lt. Caughey via/videoconference presented the Boating Safety Program application for approval 

by the Board.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to authorize the Sheriff’s office to apply for funding from 

Washington State Parks & Recreation Commission for 2017 Marine Patrol Federal Financial 

Assistance Grant Program and Boating Safety Program as presented.  Commissioner Delvin 

seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Other Business 

 

Coroner John Hansens presented a resolution authorizing a rate increase for part-time on-call 

employees from $4.50/hour to $6.00/per hour.  He said they worked hard and he had been able to 



 - 5 - 

cut back on autopsies and returned approximately 9% of his budget.  He said he didn’t want to lose 

employees to other jurisdictions as he had in the past and he would be able to fund this in his 

current budget without asking for additional money.  He said the resolution authorized it to be 

effective January 1.   

 

Mr. Sparks indicated it could be effective January 1 since it was still in the month of January.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the resolution authorizing the increase in 

hourly rate of pay for on call hours from $4.50 per hour to $6.00 per hour, effective January 1, 

2017.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

WSAC – Property Tax Reform 

 

Commissioner Delvin asked the Board if it wanted to contribute $3,000.00 to the WSAC fund for 

its assessment for property tax reform. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve $3,000.00 be paid to WSAC for the 

assessment for property tax reform.  Chairman Beaver seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Commissioner Delvin recommended the Board contribute $3,000.00 to the fund as the other 

counties were contributing to it and he felt Benton County should be a player.   

 

Commissioner Small said he was not in favor of this and that Benton County was able to maintain 

without increasing property taxes and he didn’t want to be part of that for this community and 

burden the taxpayers any further. 

 

Commissioner Delvin said it would enable some counties to enact that assessment and give the 

counties the flexibility.   

 

Chairman Beaver said there were 39 counties and that not all counties were flush.  He said he was 

in favor of allowing other counties flexibility but he would not vote for it here.   

 

Upon vote, the motion carried with Commissioner Small opposing.   

 

Commissioner Delvin said he wanted to ask Mr. Sparks to reconsider his letter of resignation and 

stay for the remainder of this contract.  The Board spoke in favor of allowing him to do that. 

 

Mr. Sparks said he appreciated that and would consider it and thought they could work something 

out.   

 

Commissioner Small said that Senator Sharon Brown was successful with assisting the wheat 

growers regarding the DNR issue.   

 

  



 - 6 - 

Executive Session – Grievance Positions  

 

The Board went into executive session at 11:00 a.m. for up to 15 minutes with DPA Steve 

Hallstrom to discuss the County’s position on two grievance issues.  Also present were David 

Sparks, Cami McKenzie, Brenda Chilton, Matt Rasmussen, Robert Blain, Loretta Smith Kelty, 

and Ryan Brown.  The Board came out at 11:14 a.m.  No decisions were made in executive session.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the Employer’s Step 3 Response regarding 

the Road Department Union Double Time Grievance as presented.  Commissioner Small seconded 

and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Executive Session - 4th Quarter Litigation Update  

 

The Board went into executive session at 11:15 a.m. with DPA Ryan Brown for up to 15 minutes 

to discuss the 4th quarter litigation update.  Also present were David Sparks, Loretta Smith Kelty, 

Steve Hallstrom, and Cami McKenzie.  The Board came out at 11:30 a.m.  Mr. Brown stated the 

Board discussed pending litigation and no decisions were made in executive session.  

 

Executive – Performance of Public Employee  

 

The Board went into executive session at 11:30 a.m. for approximately 15 minutes to discuss the 

performance of a public employee.  Also present was David Sparks.  The Board came out at 

approximately 11:55 a.m.  No decisions were made.  

 

County Claim  

 

CC 2017-04: Received January 30, 2017 from James Mengelos 

 

Account Payables 

 

Check Date 1/27/2017 

 

Transfers #012717-01271704 

Total all Funds: $48,547.50 

 

Warrants #151822-151894 

Total all Funds: $408,104.15 

 

Check Date 1/30/2017 

 

Transfers #01301701-01301707 

Total all Funds: $614,990.15 

 

Warrants #151895-151996  

Total all Funds: $1,011,616.56 

 



 - 7 - 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2017-079: Surplus of Personal Property  

2017-080: Allocation of Superior Court Salaries & Benefits & Costs of Information 

Technology Assessment; Rescinding Resolution 2016-244 

2017-081: 2017 Franklin County Flat Monthly Payments for Benton Franklin Juvenile Center 

Operations & Facilities Budget 

2017-082: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000 

2017-083: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0305-101, Dept. 000   

2017-084: Payment to Cyrring Hot Productions for Website Hosting 

2017-085: Amended Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Using Yammer Networking  

2017-086: Purchase of ArcGIS Licenses from Environmental Systems Research Institute for 

GIS Dept 

2017-087: Contract w/Richardson’s Garage Doors for Replacement Door @ Horn Rapids Park    

2017-088: Contract w/Northwest Playground Equipment, Inc for Shelter Structure @ Two 

Rivers Park 

2017-089: Compensation for Chief Deputy Assessor, Auditor, Clerk & Treasurer  

2017-090: Contract w/Pacific Microrem, Inc for Maintenance & Repair of X-Ray & Metal 

Detectors 

2017-091: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138   

2017-092: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 138 

2017-093: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500    

2017-094: 2017 Road Levy Certification 

2017-094:        2017 Road Levy Certification 

2017-095: Agreement w/City of Grandview for Equipment Maintenance     

2017-096: Payment to Rowand Machinery for Snow Removal Equipment Rental  

2017-097: Authorization to Proceed to Bid for Crack Seal Project  

2017-098: Contract w/Northwest Marine & Sport for Boat Repair & Maintenance 

2017-099: Agreement w/Kennewick School District for Education Program   

2017-099A: Title Changes and Position Change for Jail Lieutenant, Patrol Captain & 

Corrections Officer 

2017-100: Compensation for Appointed Non-Bargaining Positions; Rescinding Resolution 

2014-702 

2017-101: Deed of Right Regarding Properties Within Candy Mountain Preserve 

2017-102: Cancelling Taxes Assessed Determined to be Uncollectible  

2017-103: Adopting a Revised Rural County Capital Fund Disbursement Policy  

2017-104: Approving 2163 Funds – Permanent Supportive Mental Health Housing Program 

2017-105: Authorization to Apply for Funding – WA State Parks & Recreation – 2017 Marine 

& Boat Safety Program 

2017-106: Increasing the Hourly rate for On-Call Employees – Coroner’s Office 

 

  



 - 8 - 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 11:55 

a.m.  

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



WEH
Text Box
a. Benton County Tax Levy for 2017







Dated this day of , 2017

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File Prepared by:  Faulconer

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN FUND

NUMBER 0153101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds shall be

transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0153-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

594.110. 4189 Contingency $45,000 511.700. 4103 Professional Services $45,000

TOTAL $45,000 TOTAL $45,000

Explanation:

Prepared by: Faulconer Date:  07-Feb-2017

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

LIT to pay Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs for Project Development Services in the amount of $15,000 for February 1, 2017 through July 31, 2017

(per Resolution 2017-045) and for Consulting Services in the amount of $30,000 for February 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 (per Resolution 2017-046).

VIT Impact

VIT Impact

000

0153-101



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: February 7, 2017 

Subject: In the matter of establishing a 

Benton County Accessible Community 

Advisory Committee (ACAC) 

Prepared by: S. Faulconer 

Reviewed by: C. McKenzie 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract              

Pass Resolution            X 

Pass Ordinance              

Pass Motion    

None    

 
 

 

Consent Agenda  X 

Public Hearing             

1st Discussion             

2nd Discussion             

Other              

 

SUMMARY 

Pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.01.310, counties have the legal ability to create an Accessible Community 

Advisory Committee (“ACAC”) to (i) advise on addressing the needs of persons with disabilities in emergency plans; 

(ii) advise the county and other local governments within the county on access to programs, services, and activities, 

new construction or renovation projects, sidewalks, other pedestrian routes of travel, and disability parking 

enforcement; and (iii) develop local initiatives and activities to promote greater awareness of disability issues, and 

acceptance, involvement, and access of persons with disabilities within the community. 

 

According to RCW 36.01.310, the Board of Benton County Commissioners and the Benton County Auditor’s Office 

can expand the scope of the existing Benton County Disability Access Voting Committee as established and 

maintained under RCW 29A.46.260 to that of an Accessible Community Advisory Committee (“ACAC”) by sending 

a letter of intent to the State of Washington. 

 

This resolution will establish a 10-member committee to address the issues above, with rotating two-year terms. 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

In summer 2016, Shyanne Faulconer met with a member of the Arc of Tri-Cities that brought to our attention the 

ability of the County to form an ACAC. This individual desired that the County name the Arc of Tri-Cities as the 

“designated disability advocacy organization” rather that have a committee formed within and run by the County. 

However, because the County was able to expand the scope of the existing Disability Access Voting Committee (as 

required by RCW 29A.46.260 for the Auditor’s office to maintain) it was determined that expansion was a more 

feasible way to form the ACAC. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Sign the Resolution to form the Benton County Accessible Community Advisory Committee (ACAC) by expanding 

the scope of the Disability Access Voting Committee (pursuant to RCW 36.01.310). 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

WEH
Text Box
c. Establishing a Benton County Accessible Community Advisory Committee



Orig  Commissioners    Faulconer 
cc: Auditor, Human Services 

 RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF ESTABLISHING A BENTON COUNTY ACCESSIBLE COMMUNITY 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE (ACAC)  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.32.120(6), the Board of Benton County 

Commissioners ( “the Board”) has the care of county property and the management of county funds 

and business; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.01.310, counties have the legal ability to create 

an Accessible Community Advisory Committee (“ACAC”) to (i) advise on addressing the needs of 

persons with disabilities in emergency plans; (ii) advise the county and other local governments 

within the county on access to programs, services, and activities, new construction or renovation 

projects, sidewalks, other pedestrian routes of travel, and disability parking enforcement; and (iii) 

develop local initiatives and activities to promote greater awareness of disability issues, and 

acceptance, involvement, and access of persons with disabilities within the community; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.01.310, the Board of Benton County 

Commissioners and the Benton County Auditor’s Office have agreed to expand the scope of the 

existing Benton County Disability Access Voting Committee as established and maintained under 

RCW 29A.46.260 to that of an Accessible Community Advisory Committee (“ACAC”); and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Washington (“the Legislature”) has found that when 

people who have disabilities are welcomed and included as members of our communities and 

provided with equal access to the opportunities available to others, their participation enriches those 

communities, enhances the strength of those communities’ diversity, and contributes toward the 

economic vitality of those communities; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature further found that more than nine hundred thousand (900,000) 

Washington state residents with disabilities continue to face barriers to full participation that could 

be easily eliminated; and 

WHEREAS, focusing on removing barriers to inclusion empowers people with disabilities by giving 

them an equal chance to contribute to their communities; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.01.310, the Board has opted to create an 

Accessible Communities Advisory Committee with members that include persons with a diverse 

range of disabilities who are knowledgeable in identifying and eliminating attitudinal, programmatic, 

communication, and physical barriers encountered by persons with disabilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to create a ten (10) member Benton County Accessible Communities 

Advisory Committee (“ACAC”), to be administered by the Auditor or an authorized representative, 

and composed of members as provided for in RCW 36.01.310; and 

WHEREAS, the Benton County Accessible Communities Advisory Committee (“ACAC”) shall 

have rotating, two-year terms and shall meet no less than once per quarter; NOW, THEREFORE, 



Orig  Commissioners    Faulconer 
cc: Auditor, Human Services 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, pursuant to the provisions of 

RCW 36.32.120(6) and RCW 36.01.310, that the Board does hereby establish a ten-member Benton 

County Accessible Community Advisory Committee to perform duties pursuant to RCW 36.01.310. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Board that the Benton County Auditor or his/her duly 

authorized designee is hereby authorized to submit the appropriate documents as provided for in 

WAC Chapter 192-50 to obtain grants and reimbursement of travel, per diem, and reasonable 

accommodation for the Benton County Accessible Communities Advisory Committee meeting and 

committee sponsored activities (RCW 50.40.071-.072). 

 

Dated this__________ day of ____________________, 2017. 

 

___________________________________            

Chairman of the Board 

 

  

 ___________________________________                

Member 

 

 

 ___________________________________                

 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 

 

Attest............................................................... 

                       Clerk of the Board 

 



WEH
Text Box
d. Bi-County Non-Bargaining Contribution for Insurance Benefits to Human Services, Juvenile Justice and Superior Court







WEH
Text Box
e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.400 1134 Judge $13,000 512.400 1922 Judge Pro Tem $13,000

TOTAL $13,000 TOTAL $13,000

Explanation:

Prepared by: Jacki Lahtinen Date:  01-Feb-2017

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

District Court

Current Expense

111

0000-101



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:     02/07/2017 
Subject:               Fairgrounds 

Building 2 - 3 
Prepared by:       J.Donley 
Reviewed by:     

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 

FAIRGROUNDS 

Consent Agenda            __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
An Invitation for Bids for the remodel of exhibit halls 2 and 3 and construction of a heavy timber pavilion at 
the Benton County Fairgrounds was prepared and advertised and Benton County received and opened the 
following sealed bids on January 30, 2017:  

 
1. G2 Commercial Construction, Inc.: $1,663,500.00  ($1,485,500 base + 4 alt. $178,000) 
2. DGR*Grant Construction, Inc.:   $1,928,800.00  ($1,613,000 base + 4 alt. $315,800) 
3. POW Contracting, LLC:  $2,306,475.00  ($1,981,218 base + 4 alt. $325,257) 
4. MH Construction, Inc.:  $2,061,473.00  ($1,640,000 base + 4 alt. $421,473) 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
G2 Commercial Construction, Inc. was determined to be the lowest responsible bidder and the Public Services 
Administrator recommends entering into a contract with G2 Commercial Construction, Inc. for remodel of 
exhibit halls 2 and 3 and construction of a heavy timber pavilion at the Benton County Fairgrounds.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Total Project estimate with Architectural, Engineering and Fees $1,898,774.80  
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the Public Services Administrator prepare a contract with G2 Commercial Construction, Inc. 
for remodel of exhibit halls 2 and 3 and construction of a heavy timber pavilion at the Benton County 
Fairgrounds 
 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
f. Award to G2 Commercial Construction for the Remodel of Exhibit Halls 2 & 3 and Construction of Timber Pavilion



Original: Facilities                                                                         J.Donley 

cc: Auditor; S.Araiza; G2 Constr.; CKJT; F.Bowen; L.Hueter 

 

RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WA. IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE 

REMODEL OF EXHIBIT HALLS 2 AND 3 AND CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW HEAVY TIMBER PAVILION AT THE BENTON 

COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS TO G2 COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION, INC. AS THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER 

WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-539 dated July 12, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved the 

contract amendment with CKJT Architects, PLLC., for architectural and engineering services for the Benton County 

Fairgrounds remodel of exhibit halls 2 and 3; and  

WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-660 dated September 13, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners 

approved the contract amendment with CKJT Architects, PLLC., for architectural and engineering services for the 

construction of a new heavy timber pavilion between exhibit halls 2 and 3 at the Benton County Fairgrounds; and  

WHEREAS, an Invitation for Bids for the remodel of exhibit halls 2 and 3 and the construction of a new heavy timber 

pavilion at the Benton County Fairgrounds was prepared and advertised and Benton County received and opened 

the following sealed bids on January 30, 2017:  

 

1. G2 Commercial Construction, Inc.: $1,663,500.00  ($1,485,500 base + 4 alt. $178,000) 

2. DGR*Grant Construction, Inc.:  $1,928,800.00  ($1,613,000 base + 4 alt. $315,800) 

3. POW Contracting, LLC.:  $2,306,475.00  ($1,981,218 base + 4 alt. $325,257) 

4. MH Construction, Inc.:  $2,061,473.00  ($1,640,000 base + 4 alt. $421,473) 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Services Administrator and CKJT Architects, PLLC., reviewed the bid proposals and determined 

G2 Commercial Construction, Inc., Contractors License No. G2COMCC902JB, to be the lowest responsible bidder.  

The Public Facilities Administrator recommends entering into a contract for the remodel of exhibit halls 2 and 3 and 

the construction of a new heavy timber pavilion at the Benton County Fairgrounds with G2 Commercial Construction, 

Inc. in the amount of $1,663,500.00 including W.S.S.T;  NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby concurs with the 

recommendation to enter into a contract for the remodel of exhibit halls 2 and 3 and the construction of a new 

heavy timber pavilion at the Benton County Fairgrounds with G2 Commercial Construction, Inc. in the amount of 

$1,663,500.00 including W.S.S.T and authorizes the Public Services Administrator to prepare a contract for the 

Board’s signature.   

Dated this……… day of …………., 2017 

      _________________________________________ 

      Chairman of the Board 

_________________________________________ 

Chairman Pro-Tem 

_________________________________________ 

Member 

 

Attest: ________________________           Constituting the Board of County Commissioners of Benton County, 

Washington 

 



WEH
Text Box
g. Agreement w/US Dept of Housing & Urban Development for Continuum of Care Program



























WEH
Text Box
h. Lease Agreement w/Lourdes Counseling Center for Detox Services



























WEH
Text Box
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000





WEH
Text Box
j. Right of Way Plans for C.E. 1960 CRP Nine Canyon Road, Phase III





WEH
Text Box
k. Authorization to Process to Bid for Purchase of Refined Petroleum Products





















WEH
Text Box
l. Authorization to Process to Bid for Purchase of Surfacing Materials















WEH
Text Box
m. Purchase of One Dodge Grand Caravan From Dwayne Lane’s Chrysler Jeep Dodge











WEH
Text Box
n. Purchase of Two Ford Escapes From Columbia Ford









WEH
Text Box
o. Purchase of Sign Materials for the TrafficJet Print System from Avery Dennison



WEH
Text Box
p. Contract w/Qal-Tek Asso. for Calibration of Two Troxler Nuclear Density Gauges

































WEH
Text Box
q. Purchase of Traffic Sign Materials From Intermountain Sign & Safety















DATED

PCM 1 PCM 1.1 Staff Memo w/Document A & Document B April 4, 2016
Includes: PCM 1.2 Notice of Public Hearing March 25, 2016

PCH 1 PCH 1.1 Comments from Futurewise April 8, 2016

PCM 2 PCM 2.1 Staff Memo May 27, 2016
PCM 2.2 Comment from the Dept. of Commerce May 11, 2016
PCM 2.3 CWPP Updated Proposed Changes May 27, 2106
PCM 2.4 CWPP Matrix May 27, 2016

BCCM 1 BCCM 1.1 Board of County Commissioners Agenda Sheet July 5, 2016
Includes: BCCM 1.2 Proposed Resolution July 5, 2016

BCCH 1 BCCH 1.1 Board of County Commissioners Agenda Sheet January 19, 2017
BCCH 1.2 Proposed Resolution February 7, 2017
BCCH 1.3 Draft Ordinance for BCC Title 16
BCCH 1.4 Resolutions 2016-559 and 92-296 for CWPP's
BCCH 1.5 Resolutions approved by the Cities
BCCH 1.6 Notice of Public Hearing January 20, 2017

PCR = Planning Commission Record Exhibits
PCM = Planning Commission Memo Exhibits
PCH = Planning Commission Exhibits 
submitted during Hearing
BCCM = Board of County Commissioners 
Memo Exhibits
BCCH = Board of County Commissioners 
Hearing Exhibits submitted during Hearing

Planning Commission Staff Memo Exhibit List - (April 12, 2016 cancelled) May 10, 2016

EXHIBIT LIST FOR 
Countywide Planning Policies  

Board of County Commissioners Staff Memo List - July 12, 2016

Board of County Commissioners Hearing Exhibit List -February 7, 2017

Planning Commission Hearing Exhibit List - May 10, 2016

Planning Commission Staff Memo Exhibit List - Contineud Hearing June 14, 2016

djh2
Highlight

djh2
Highlight

djh2
Highlight

djh2
Highlight

djh2
Highlight

djh2
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
Benton County Planning Policies ~ G Wendt



AGENDA ITEM 
MTG. DATE: February 7, 2017 
SUBJECT  Update to the County-
wide Planning Policies 
MEMO DATE: January 19, 2017   
Prepared By: Greg Wendt, 
Principal Planner 
Reviewed by: Jerrod MacPherson, 
Planning Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract 
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance X 
Pass Motion X 
Other 

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing  X 
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion 
Other  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
RCW 36.70A.210 requires the County to adopt Countywide planning policies (CWPPs) in 
cooperation with the cities located in whole or in part within the County.  The CWPP is a 
written policy statement used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which 
county and cities comprehensive plans are developed and updated.  The Benton County 
Planning Department and the cities have worked over the past year on updating these 
policies.  The original CWPPs were adopted in 1992 pursuant to Resolution 92-296 and 
have not been reviewed or updated since. The adoption of updated CWPPs would be 
considered the first step in Benton County’s Comprehensive Plan periodic update as 
required by the State of Washington’s Growth Management Act. 

On May 10, 2016 and June 14, 2016, the Benton County Planning Commission conducted 
a public hearing on the revised CWPPs.  The Planning Commission passed a motion 
recommending approval and adoption of the proposed CWPPs to the Benton County 
Board of Commissioners.  

On July 12, 2016, the Benton County Board of Commissioners, pursuant to Resolution 
2016-559, agreed in principle to the proposed amended Countywide Planning Policies and 
directed the Benton County Planning Manager to send the proposed updated Countywide 
Planning Policies to the Cities of Kennewick, Richland, West Richland, Benton City and 
Prosser for their review and concurrence. 

Each of the cities within Benton County reviewed and adopted resolutions granting 
approval of the updated County Wide Planning Policies on the following dates: City of 
West Richland Resolution No. 40-16 on December 6, 2016; City of Richland Resolution 
No. 174-16 on September 6, 2016; City of Kennewick Resolution No. 16-19 on September 
6, 2016; City of Benton City Resolution No. 2016-15 on September 6, 2016; and City of 
Prosser Resolution No. 16-1520 on August 9, 2016. 

With no changes being proposed by the respective cities, the next step in this process is 
final review and approval or adoption by the Board of County Commissioners. Planning 
Department Staff has coordinated the final steps of this process with Ryan Brown, Chief 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney and the Civil Division of the Benton County Prosecuting 
Attorney’s Office. 

BCCH 1.1



SUMMARY 
The Benton County Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on Tuesday, May 
10, 2016 and Tuesday June 14, 2016 and made a recommendation to the Board of County 
Commissioners that the proposed update to the County Wide Planning Policies be 
approved.  The Board of County Commissioners reviewed and considered the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation at a public meeting on July 12, 2016 and agreed with the 
Planning Commission’s recommendation, subject to review and approval by the Cities of 
Kennewick, Richland, West Richland, Benton City and Prosser.  During the fall of 2016, 
each of the cities within Benton County reviewed and adopted resolutions granting 
approval of the updated County Wide Planning Policies. The request for final adoption is 
before the County Commissioners at a public hearing on February 7, 2017.  

RECOMMENDATION 
The Benton County Planning Commission and the Cities of Kennewick, Richland, West 
Richland, Benton City, and Prosser recommend that that County Commissioners adopt 
the updated Countywide Planning Policies and rescind Benton County Resolution 92-296. 

MOTION  
The Board signs and adopts the attached Resolution and Ordinance approving the 
updated Countywide Planning Polices and rescinding Benton County Resolution 92-296.  



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING; ADOPTION OF THE UPDATED BENTON 
COUNTY COUNTY-WIDE PLANNING POLICIES AND RESCINDING RESOLUTION 92-296. 

WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.210 requires the County adopt Countywide planning policies in 
cooperation with the cities located in whole or in part within the County; and, 

WHEREAS, on September 28, 1992, the Benton County Commissioners adopted 
Countywide Planning Policies pursuant to Benton County Resolution 92-296; and, 

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2007, the Benton County Commissioners updated the Benton 
County Comprehensive Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the Countywide Planning Policies for Benton County have not been reviewed 
or updated since September 28, 1992; and, 

WHEREAS, in 2016, the planning departments of the County and the cities therein 
reviewed the existing Countywide Planning Policies for Benton County and have 
suggested changes to such policies; and, 

WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission reviewed the proposed changes to 
the Countywide Planning Policies for Benton County and conducted a public hearing on 
May, 10, 2016 and June 14, 2016; and,  

WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission, after considering the public 
testimony presented, did recommend to the Board of County Commissioners that the 
proposed amended Countywide Planning Policies be adopted by the Board of County 
Commissioners; and,  

WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission did also recommend to the Board 
of County Commissioners that the proposed amended Countywide Planning Policies be 
sent to the cities within Benton County for their review and approval; and,  

WHEREAS, on July 12, 2016 the Board of County Commissioners, pursuant to Resolution 
2016-559, agreed in principle to the proposed amended Countywide Planning Policies for 
Benton County and directed the Benton County Planning Manager to send the proposed 
amended Countywide Planning Policies to the Cities of Kennewick, Richland, West 
Richland, Benton City and Prosser for their review and concurrence; and, 

WHEREAS, each of the cities within Benton County reviewed and adopted resolutions 
granting approval of the County Wide Planning Policies on the following dates: City of 
West Richland Resolution No. 40-16 on December 6, 2016; City of Richland Resolution 

BCCH 1.2



No. 174-16 on September 6, 2016; City of Kennewick Resolution No. 16-19 on September 
6, 2016; City of Benton City Resolution No. 2016-15 on September 6, 2016; and City of 
Prosser Resolution No. 16-1520 on August 9, 2016; and, 

WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing was published in the Tri-City Herald on January 
26, 2017; and,  

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Benton County Board of Commissioners on 
February  7, 2017, at 9:00 a.m. in the Commissioners Meeting Room, Third Floor, Benton 
County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 99350, to consider the adoption of Ordinance No.  

 and the Countywide Planning Policies; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that it would be in the best interest 
of the County to adopt Ordinance No.    attached hereto and the updated 
Countywide Planning Policies; NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that Ordinance No.    attached hereto, an ordinance 
adopting updated Countywide Planning Policies, be adopted and shall take effect upon 
the date of approval and signature; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners hereby rescinds 
Resolution 92-296 and the Countywide Planning Policies adopted thereby. 

Dated this 7th day of February 2017. 

_____________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 

____________________________ 
Chairman Pro-Tem 

____________________________ 
Member 

Constituting the Board of 
County Commissioners of 

Benton County, Washington 

Attest: ____________________ 
Clerk of the Board 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE relating to county planning; adopting updated 
Benton County Countywide Planning Policies.  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

Section 1. The following new section is hereby made part of 
Title 16 of the Benton County Code but will not be codified.  

COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES.  The attached Countywide 
Planning Policies are hereby adopted pursuant to RCW 36.70A.210 as 
the countywide planning policies for Benton County and the cities 
therein. 

Section 2.  Severability. If any provision of this ordinance 
is declared unconstitutional, or the applicability thereof to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the constitutionality of 
the remainder of the ordinance and the applicability thereof to 
other persons and circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect 
and be in full force upon its passage and adoption. 

ADOPTED AND PASSED this__________ day of ______________2017. 

Chairman of the Board. 

Chairman Pro-Tem. 

Member. 

Approved as to Form: Constituting the Board of 
County Commissioners of 
Benton County, Washington 

Attest: 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Clerk of the Board 

BCCH 1.3



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 2 

Exhibit A 

INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW: 

The Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that 
cities and counties adopt comprehensive plans. The GMA further 
requires that counties adopt Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs), 
in cooperation with the cities located in whole or in part within 
the county.  CWPP establish a countywide framework for developing 
and adopting county and city comprehensive plans.  The role of the 
CWPP is to coordinate comprehensive plans of jurisdictions in the 
same county for regional issues or issues affecting common borders 
(RCW 36.70A.100).  Under state law, RCW 36.70A.210(1) describes 
the relationship between comprehensive plans and CWPPs.  It says 
that: 

a ‘countywide planning policy’ is a written policy 
statement or statements used solely for establishing a 
countywide framework from which county and city 
comprehensive plans are developed and adopted pursuant 
to this chapter. This framework shall ensure that city 
and county comprehensive plans are consistent as required 
in RCW 36.70A.100. Nothing in this section shall be 
construed to alter the land use powers of the cities.

In order to achieve the objectives above, and to ensure that 
regional planning efforts and governmental actions are consistent 
with current legal requirements and information, substantial 
revisions to the Benton County CWPPs have been proposed. The 
development of these revisions was a collaborative process between 
the County and the cities.  

HISTORY: 

In 1991, one year after the Washington State Legislature enacted 
the Growth Management Act (GMA), the GMA was amended to require 
that Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs) be adopted within those 
counties subject to the GMA. The first Benton County Countywide 
Planning Policies were adopted on September 28, 1992.   

AMENDMENTS AND ADOPTION: 

In the years since the last CWPPs were adopted in Benton County, 
the GMA has evolved through amendments and judicial interpretations 
provided by the GMA and the courts. The revised CWPPs attempt to 
provide procedures for County and city/town coordination to address 
these issues. 

The GMA does not specifically address amendments to the CWPPs; 
however, it has become apparent that the Benton County CWPPs should 
be updated in order to better address countywide planning concerns 
and coordination between jurisdictions in the County. A public 
hearing was held by the Benton County Planning Commission on April 
12, 2016. 

Benton County is the lead agency for this proposal and has 
determined that it does not have a significant adverse impact on 
the environment and a Determination of Non Significance was issued 
on February 10, 2016



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 3 

In order to comply with GMA requirements and the adoption/amendment 
procedures identified below, all jurisdictions in Benton County 
must agree to the adoption of the revised CWPPs. This process will 
involve the planning departments, planning commissions, and 
elected representatives of each jurisdiction. In order to 
facilitate this process, Benton County, in consultation with the 
cities, has developed the following adoption/ratification process 
for the draft CWPPs: 

1. Benton County Planning Commission recommendation on proposed
CWPPs.

2. The Benton County Board of Commissioners (BOCC) adopts a
resolution agreeing in principle to the proposed CWPPs, but
acknowledging that changes may need to be made based on input
from each jurisdiction. The BOCC’s resolution will contain a
statement requiring that each jurisdiction ratify the CWPPs
adopted by Benton County and will lay out a schedule for future
approval steps.

3. CWPPs approved by Benton County BOCC reviewed by each
jurisdiction’s Planning Commission.

4. The elected body of each jurisdiction passes a resolution which
states that the jurisdiction either: (a) supports the CWPPs in
their entirety, (b) rejects the CWPPs in their entirety, or
(c) supports the CWPPs with specific changes.

5. If specific changes are identified by a jurisdiction in step
four, the Benton County Planning Department and Planning
Commission may amend the CWPPs and attempt to reconcile and
conflicting changes.

6. The Benton County BOCC adopts, by ordinance, the final CWPPs.

SECTION 1. Countywide planning policy is a written policy statement 
or statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework 
from which County and City comprehensive plans are developed and 
adopted.  This framework will ensure that City and County 
comprehensive plans are consistent with statewide planning 
policies and as required by the Growth Management Act. 

SECTION 2. POLICIES TO IMPLEMENT RCW 36.70A.110; 

Policy #1: The Comprehensive Plans of Benton County and each of 
the cities therein shall be prepared and adopted with the objective 
to facilitate economic prosperity by accommodating growth 
consistent with the following: 

1. Urban Growth.  Encourage development in urban areas where
adequate public facilities exist or can be provided in a cost 
efficient manner. 

2. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into
low density development lacking adequate services, injurious to 
ground and surface water quality, destructive to the area's 
agricultural lands base and less than cost effective relative to 
public service costs. 



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 4 

3. Transportation.  Encourage efficient multi-modal transportation
systems that are based on regional priorities and coordinated with 
county and city comprehensive plans. 

4. Property rights.  Private property rights shall not be taken
for public use without just compensation having been made.  The 
property rights of land owners shall be protected from arbitrary 
and discriminatory actions. 

5. Permits.  Maintain a permit review process that provides for
integrated and consolidated review. 

6. Natural resource industries.  Maintain and encourage natural
resource-based industries, including agricultural, fisheries and 
mineral industries.   

7. Open space and recreation.  Encourage the retention of open
space and the development of recreational opportunities, conserve 
fish and wildlife habitat, and increase access to natural resource 
lands and water. 

8. Environment.  Protect the environment and enhance the region's
high quality of life, including air and water quality and the 
availability of water. 

9. Citizen participation and coordination.  Encourage the 
involvement of citizens in the planning process and ensure 
coordination between communities and jurisdictions to reconcile 
conflicts. 

10. Public facilities and services.  Ensure that those public
facilities and services necessary to support development shall be 
adequate to serve development at the time the development is 
available for occupancy and use without decreasing current service 
levels below locally established minimum standards. With the 
exception of water, sewer, and local access streets, which shall 
be available at the time of occupancy, the term "adequate" shall 
be defined as either available at the time of occupancy, or shown 
on the current Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), as a funded project 
within six years. 

11. Historic preservation.  Identify and encourage the 
preservation of lands, sites, and structures that have historical 
or archaeological significance. 

SECTION 3. POLICIES FOR PROMOTION OF CONTIGUOUS AND ORDERLY 
DEVELOPMENT AND THE PROVISION OF URBAN SERVICES TO SUCH 
DEVELOPMENT; 

Policy #2:  The County shall allocate future projected populations 
through the use of the latest population projections published by 
the Washington State Office of Financial Management (OFM). 
Allocation of future populations shall be based on the following 
distribution:  City of Kennewick 40% of total county population; 
City of Richland 28% of total county population; Benton County 19% 
of total county population; City of West Richland 8% of total 
county population; City of Prosser 3% of total county population 
and City of Benton City 2% of total county population.  The County, 
in consultation with the Cities, will review the OFM population 
projection ranges (Low, Medium and High) and allocation 
percentages whenever OFM publishes new GMA population projections.



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 5 

Policy #3:  The locating of Urban Growth Areas within the County 
shall be accomplished through the use of accepted planning 
practices which provide sufficient land and service capacity, up 
to the determined need, to meet projected populations at urban 
densities and service standards within the Cities, and urban 
densities for those portions of the County located within the urban 
growth areas.   

Policy #4:  That Urban Growth Areas of each City shall be based 
upon official and accepted population projections for minimum of 
20 years.  The gross undeveloped and underdeveloped acreage within 
the city limits and the Urban Growth Area shall be sufficient to 
meet all the land requirements, for the following: community and 
essential public facilities, population projection, commercial and 
industrial activities, employment projections, infill and to 
prevent inflation of land cost due to a limited land supply. 

a. The jurisdictions within the county shall use a uniform
formula for identifying the land area necessary per capita
for each community.   Each jurisdiction's population
projection shall be multiplied by its gross per capita land
area requirement, which in the aggregate will define total
land needs within the Urban Growth Area (UGA).

The uniform formula is as follows: 

A + B + C + D + E + F + G + H + I + J + K = acreage/per capita (or 
acreage per dwelling unit if per capita is divided by average 
household size) where: 

A = residential land per capita; (or DU) 
B = parks and recreational area per capita; 
C = area required for public facilities (fire stations, 

jails, etc.,) per capita; 
D= area required for schools per capita; 
E =  commercial area per capita, or per employee; 
F = industrial/manufacturing area per capita; 
G = open space (golf courses, etc.) per capita; 
H = public service lands required for transportation 

network, easements and R.O.W.s per DU; 
I* = use 70% build-out for all residential lands; 
J = add 25% to the total of A Through I for land 

supply/demand balance; 
K = land credit for undevelopable lands i.e. Critical Areas 

including steep slopes, wetlands, habitat, etc. within 
the UGA. 

* The same factor should be used for all jurisdictions.

Policy #5 :  That within the urban growth area, urban uses shall 
be concentrated in and adjacent to existing urban services or where 
they are shown on a Capital Improvement Plan to be available within 
6 years.  

Policy #6:  That cities limit the extension of service district 
boundaries and water and sewer infrastructure to areas within each 
jurisdiction's urban growth area contained in their adopted 
Comprehensive Plan. Utility plans should attempt to reflect 
possible needs for 50 years. 



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 6 

Policy #7: Within each Comprehensive Plan, the Land Use Plan for 
urban growth areas shall designate urban densities and indicate 
the general locations of greenbelt and critical areas.   

Policy #8: Wherever possible, given consideration of all other 
variables, such as existing unused service infrastructure, the 
placement of an urban growth line into an area of existing 
commercial agriculture shall be avoided. 

Policy #9:  The appropriate directions for the expansion of urban 
growth areas are those which are unincorporated lands with existing 
service infrastructure and lands adjacent to corporate limits.  

Policy #10: All policies within each jurisdiction's Comprehensive 
Plans shall be modified to be consistent with adopted Countywide 
Policies.  

SECTION 4. POLICIES FOR SITING PUBLIC FACILITIES OF A COUNTYWIDE 
OR STATEWIDE NATURE;  

Policy #11:  The County and Cities, along with public participation 
shall develop a cooperative regional process to site essential 
public facilities of regional and statewide importance.  The 
objective of the process shall be to ensure that such facilities 
are located so as to protect environmental quality, optimize access 
and usefulness to all jurisdictions, and equitably distribute 
economic benefits/burdens throughout the region or county. 

At the Countywide and multi-county level, the following action 
should be accomplished: 

a. Develop a uniform siting procedure which enables selection of
optimum project sites and appropriate size and scale relative
to intended benefit area.

Policy #12:  Support the existing solid waste program that promotes 
and maintains a high level of public health and safety, protects 
the natural and human environment of Benton County and encourages 
public involvement by securing representation of the public in the 
planning process. 

Policy #13:  Encourage and expand coordination and communication 
among all jurisdictions and solid waste agencies/firms in Benton 
and Franklin Counties in order to develop consistent and cost-
effective programs that avoid duplication of effort and gaps in 
program activities. 

a. Utilize the existing Benton-Franklin Solid Waste Advisory
Committee.

SECTION 5. POLICIES FOR COUNTYWIDE TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES AND 
STRATEGIES;  

Policy #14:  Maintain active County-City participation in the 
Regional Transportation Planning Organization in order to 
facilitate City, County, and State coordination in planning 
regional transportation facilities and infrastructure improvements 
to serve essential public facilities including Port District 
facilities and properties.  



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 7 

SECTION 6. POLICIES THAT CONSIDER THE NEED FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING, 
SUCH AS HOUSING FOR ALL ECONOMIC SEGMENTS OF THE POPULATION AND 
PARAMETERS FOR ITS DISTRIBUTION; 

Policy #15: The County and Cities within shall work together to 
provide housing for all economic segments of the population.  All 
jurisdictions shall seek to create the conditions necessary for 
the construction of affordable housing, at the appropriate 
densities within the cities and County. The following actions 
should be accomplished: 

a. Jointly quantify and project total Countywide housing needs
by income level and housing type (i.e. rental, ownership,
senior, farm worker housing, group housing.)

b. Establish a mechanism whereby the housing efforts/programs of
each jurisdiction address the projected Countywide need.

c. Address the affordable housing needs of very low, low, and
moderate income households, and special needs individuals
through the Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy
(CHAS).

d. Develop design standards for implementation within the
Comprehensive Plan with special attention to be given to the
residential needs of low to moderate income families.

SECTION 7. POLICIES FOR JOINT COUNTY AND CITY PLANNING WITHIN URBAN 
GROWTH AREAS;  

Policy #16: Urban growth areas may include territory located 
outside of a city if such territory may be characterized by urban 
growth or is adjacent to territory already characterized by urban 
growth.  Within urban growth areas, only urban development may 
occur.  For the purposes of locating urban growth areas, and 
permitting new development within them, "Urban" is defined as:  

a. Having dedicated and improved (surfaced) streets, with
dimension, design and construction standards for new
development determined by "joint city/county standards" and;

b. For new development, road, street and intersection right-of
way widths located and sized to accommodate projected local
and regional average daily traffic (ADT) as determined by
each jurisdictions Land Use Plan Transportation Element and,
where relevant, projections of the Benton Franklin Council of
Governments.

Policy #17: To encourage logical expansions of corporate 
boundaries into urban growth areas, and to enable the most cost 
efficient expenditure of public funds for the provision of urban 
services into newly annexed areas.  The County and each City shall 
jointly develop and implement development, land division and 
building standards, and coordinated permit procedures for the 
review and permitting of new subdivisions within Urban Growth 
Areas. 

a. Joint development standards shall be adopted by all
jurisdictions. Standards may vary between the County and
various incorporated jurisdictions.



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 8 

SECTION 8. POLICIES FOR COUNTYWIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND 
EMPLOYMENT;  

Policy #18: Consistent with the protection of public health, 
safety, welfare, and the use of natural resources on a long-term 
sustainable basis, the ability of service capacity to accommodate 
demands, and the expressed desires of each community, 
Comprehensive Plans shall jointly and individually support the 
County and region's economic prosperity in order to promote 
employment and economic opportunity for all citizens. 

Policy #19: The County and Cities have historically partnered with 
each other as well as with other organizations to achieve economic 
development throughout the region.  It is the intention of the 
County and Cities to continue to actively pursue mutually 
beneficial partnerships that promote growth in all sectors of 
business and industry, including but not limited to: areas of 
agriculture, agri-business, industrial, commercial, public 
schools, recreation and tourism.  Key strategies will include 
promoting family wage jobs, increasing income and reducing 
poverty, increase business formation, expansion and retention, and 
creating jobs and financial investment to improve the economics of 
our communities. 

a. An economic development element should be integrated into the
comprehensive plan of each jurisdiction.  The economic
development element should establish goals and policies for
each jurisdiction; actively promote employment opportunities
for family-wage jobs; support the retention and expansion of
businesses and industry in Benton County; support development
of public schools; encourage the development of tourist-
related businesses, including those that capitalize on area
agricultural and other resources.

b. Comprehensive Plans should foster and promote a natural
environment that will contribute to economic growth and
prosperity, and a business environment that offers diverse
economic opportunities for businesses of all types and sizes
in the region.

c. The County and Cities should encourage public and private
agency cooperation and participation in the comprehensive
planning process.  These agencies should cooperatively
evaluate trends and opportunities to identify strategies
meeting long-term economic needs for the County region.

d. The County and Cities agree that Benton County may establish
economic development strategies and implementation criteria
for siting major industrial and resource based development
within rural areas of the County in accordance with RCW
36.70A.365.

e. The provision of utilities and other supporting urban
governmental services to commercial and industrial areas
should be coordinated and assigned a high priority by utility
purveyors and service providers.

f. A Countywide land use inventory should be established to
monitor commercial and industrial land supply.



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 9 

g. Support the development of public schools in areas where
present or can be extended, is financially supportable at
urban densities, where the extension of public infrastructure
will protect health and safety, as per WAC 365-196-425(3)(b).

SECTION 9. AN ANALYSIS OF THE FISCAL IMPACT. 

Policy #20: Capital Improvement Plans and Land Use Plans, shall 
conduct fiscal analyses which identify and refine the most cost 
effective use of regional and local public services.  This should 
be accomplished through actions including the following: 

a. City's six year CIPs for streets, water, and sewer should
show infrastructure sized to accommodate build-out of service
areas within the 20 year urban growth area, at a minimum.

b. Construction design and placement standards for roads,
intersections and streets (with provisions for storm water
conveyance), sewer, water and lighting infrastructure, should
be determined based upon an analysis which identifies the
lowest public expenditure over extended periods of time.
Utilities should be incorporated into such analyses.

c. Build out scenarios should be factored into school, fire and
police service demand projections.

Policy #21: Support the development of public schools in areas 
where utilities are present or can be extended, is financially 
supportable at urban densities, where the extension of public 
infrastructure will protect health and safety, and the school 
locations are consistent with the analysis recommended by WAC 365-
196-425(3)(b). 

SECTION 10. AMENDING POLICIES. 

Policy #22: The Growth Management Act requires counties planning 
under the Act to adopt a countywide planning policy in cooperation 
with the cities located in the county. The countywide planning 
policy is to be a written policy statement or statements used 
solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county 
and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted pursuant to 
this [GMA] chapter.” The purpose for the Benton County Wide 
Planning Policies is to meet this requirement of the Act. This 
document is a tool that will provide the necessary guidance to 
achieve consistency during the updating of comprehensive plans for 
the county and the cities/towns. 

The County Commissioners will review the policies and cause a final 
proposal to be transmitted to the cities for ratification and 
ultimately back to the Board of Commissioners for final action. 
The County Wide Planning Policies will be considered adopted when 
ratified by the cities and approved by the Board of Commissioners. 
Cities agree to take action within 45 days of the transmittal of 
the proposal and to submit resolutions of ratification to the 
county to document the action taken by the city. 

The Board of Commissioners agrees to adopt the ratified policies 
without modification upon receipt of notice that at least three 
cities have acted affirmatively.  The Commissioners will convene 
to consider possible modifications to these policies if 
ratification is not accomplished.



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 10 

Future amendments to the County Wide Planning Policies may be 
considered when proposed by the County or a City.   

SECTION 11. LOCATE URBAN GROWTH AREAS 

Population Projections 

1. Review and comment on preliminary OFM population projections
due in Dec. 91.

2. Legislative bodies of each jurisdiction to review OFM
population projections.

3. Update the existing land use inventory to reflect current
conditions (use county GIS to provide county-wide land use
inventory).

4. GMC derives formula for allocation of OFM population
projections -sends formula to individual jurisdictions via
the BCPPC.

-BCPPC sends to indiv.jurisdictions legislative bodies for
review
-BOCC takes action on pop.allocation

Land Use Element Map 

1. Identify accepted uniform planning criteria used for locating
Urban Growth Areas:

-natural physical barriers and roads
-existing service capacity (supply/deficit)
-projected service capacity (new supply)
-planning objectives (GMA req.) and;

2. Uniform criteria for insuring adequate land supply within
Urban Growth Areas:

-enable growth without creating excess demand for services,
congestion etc.,
-discourage sprawl without grossly inflating land costs;

3. Identify uniform, established candidates for the supply of
developable land within the Urban Growth areas:

-vacant, underutilized, partially utilized

4. Identify uniform, established candidates for lands to be
excluded from development, such as lands:

-needed for R.O.W.
-hazardous, critical, open space etc.,
-too costly to provide services
-to be zoned agricultural with Transfers of Density Rights
(TDRs)

5. Map existing public, private and semi-public service district
boundaries and;



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 11 

6. Inventory all existing capital facilities for public, private
and semi-public service providers, and transportation
network, identify existing capacity:

Water sewer 
fire police 
schools ports 
parks libraries 
hospital communications 

7. Confer with BFRC to establish current level transportation
data re: inventory

-each jurisdiction to build on BFRC transportation data;
define local street conditions, capacities, programmed and
needed improvements.

8. Inventory housing stock - identify existing supply/demand
ratio by housing.

9. Using Population Projections per jurisdiction, accomplish the
following:

-project housing mix/type and occupancy rates;
-identify projected gross demands for services identified in
item #5, above;
- equate existing services infrastructure capabilities and
C.I. P.s with gross demands;
-identify new C.I.s, (supplies of water, sewer, school, rec.
fac. etc.,) necessary to meet gross demands;
-survey options to meet gross service with cost effectiveness
on essential services (i.e., water and sewer, road
maintenance as a priority) and; type, identify present need
(use Census);
-with the cost effectiveness of meeting other services
demands as a consideration.

10. Contact each utility purveyor.  Solicit participation on LUE
advisory committees on relevant issues.

11. Inventory facilities/capacities of existing utility services,
identify current plans for new facilities and capacities
including but not limited to electric, telecommunications,
natural gas. Rely on BFRC data.

12. lands such as: utility and transportation corridors,
landfills, sewage treatment facilities, recreation, schools
etc.,

-integrate existing information from comp. plans, needs
assessments, pop. projections, into one joint list of needed
public lands;
-county must work with state and cities to identify areas of
shared need and shall prepare a prioritized list with
estimated acquisition dates;
-capital acquisition budget for each jurisdiction with
jointly agreed upon priorities and schedule. *

13. Identify Open Space Corridors within and between Urban Growth
Areas, including:
-lands used or designated as recreational, wildlife habitat,
trails, and "critical areas" as defined in sec .3



Ordinance No.______ 
Continued 
Page 12 
 

-optional: develop a mechanism to purchase fee simple or 
lesser interests in these open spaces using funds authorized 
by RCW 84.34.230 * 
-develop an acquisitions list for those lands with critical 
resources imposing extreme constraints on development * 

 
14. Draft a procedure, including siting criteria, for 

locating/approving essential public facilities. 
 

-review list of essential facilities provided by OFM with the 
objective to identify those suitable for location in urban vs 
rural areas. 

 
15. Consistent with the revised Policies in the Comp. Plan Texts, 

integrate  population projections, land use and capital 
facilities inventory data, lands necessary for new capital 
facilities, and total land requirements to support population 
projections densities, open space and critical/natural areas 
(set asides) into new 20 year Urban Growth Areas. 

 
16. Review of Urban Growth Areas by each jurisdiction's 

legislative body. 
 
17. BOCC adopts Urban Growth Areas, then; 
 
 
SECTION 12. PREPARE DRAFT LAND USE MAP 
 
Map Designations 
 
1. Prepare Draft Land Use Map with general distribution, 

location and extent of land uses, and:  
 

-Urban Growth Areas and Rural Lands; 
 
-Open Space; 
 
-Public Facilities and lands; 
 
-population densities; 
 
-building intensities; 
 
-est. future pop.  densities (multiply av. bldg. densities X 
pers/household: 

 
* not necessary for locating urban growth boundaries 
 



BCCH 1.4



































BCCH 1.5

















BCCH 1.6


	CA - District Court e.pdf
	Copy of blank LIT1.pdf
	Form


	PH - Benton County Planning Policies.pdf
	CWPP Exhibit Master List
	Sheet1

	BOCC AG CWPP 2-7-17 
	AGENDA ITEM
	Prepared By: Greg Wendt, Principal Planner
	Consent Agenda 

	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION

	CWPP Final Resolution 2-7-16
	ORD adopting CWPP 2-7-17
	Section 2.  Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is declared unconstitutional, or the applicability thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the constitutionality of the remainder of the ordinance and the applicability there...
	Section 3.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon its passage and adoption.
	Exhibit A
	INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW:
	HISTORY:
	AMENDMENTS AND ADOPTION:

	CWPP City Aprvd Res 2-7-16
	CWPP res 2016-559 & 92-296




